
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2023 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES:

1. Brandon Echard, Electric Line Technician – 3rd Class, Electric Department.

VII. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Women’s History Month.

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Waterford Crossing Rezoning.
2. Gray Point Motors Rezoning.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

1. Rebecca Caveness – Watermelon Festival

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ January 23, 2023 Vision Setting Meeting Minutes; and
➢ February 13, 2023 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.

2. Budget Calendar Amendment.



3. DPD Properties II, LLC: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation.

4. Church of the Open Door: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the
Annexation.

5. Aces for Autism: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation.

6. Brookfield Section 4, Phase 1: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the
Annexation.

7. Audit Contract FY2022-2023.

XI. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Electric Rate Update.

2. Rules of Procedure.

XII. NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2023 Municipal Election

2. NCLM Board of Directors Elections.

XIII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Support Shriner’s efforts financially for the Parade (Councilman Moore).

XIV. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, March 20, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

2. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room.

3. Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, March 23, 2023 @ 7:00 – Town Hall Executive
Conference Room.

4. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 @ 6:30 pm – Town Operations
Center.

5. Town Manager Agenda Review Meeting, April 6, 2023 @ 4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive
Conference Room.

6. Good Friday Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Friday, April 7, 2023.
7. Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, April 10, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly

Room.

NOTE: Regular Town Council Meeting will be held at 6:00 pm starting on Monday, May 8, 2023. 

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



PROCLAMATION 
Women’s History Month 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, and ethnic background have made historic 

contributions to the growth and strength of our Nation in countless recorded and unrecorded ways; 

and 

WHEREAS, American women have played and continue to play critical economic, cultural, and 

social roles in every sphere of the life of the Nation by constituting a significant portion of the labor 

force working inside and outside of the home; and 

WHEREAS, American women have played a unique role throughout the history of the Nation 

by providing the majority of the volunteer labor force of the Nation; and 

WHEREAS, American women were particularly important in the establishment of early 

charitable, philanthropic, and cultural institutions in our Nation; and 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, and ethnic background served as early 

leaders in the forefront of every major progressive social change movement; and 

WHEREAS, American women have served our country courageously in the military; and 

WHEREAS, American women have been leaders, not only in securing their own rights of 

suffrage and equal opportunity, but also in the abolitionist movement, the emancipation movement, 

the industrial labor movement, the civil rights movement, and other movements, especially the peace 

movement, which created a more fair and just society for all; and 

WHEREAS, despite these contributions, the role of American women in history has been 

consistently overlooked and undervalued, in the literature, teaching and study of American history; 

and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby designate 

March as “Women’s History Month” honoring the contribution and legacy of women. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 

13th day of March 20223. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
3



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Rezoning Request – Waterford Crossing. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Notice of Public Hearing, Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Rachel Tyre (ENC Home Solutions, LLC) 

Location: Railroad Street at its intersection with Worthington Road and Vernon White Road. 

Parcel Numbers:25765 

Site Data: 13.5 acres 

Current Zoning District: AR 

Proposed Zoning District: R-6 CD 

R-6 CD with the following conditions: All lots will be single-family residential; All lots will be a

minimum of 7,000 SF; All homes will be a minimum of 1500 SF (Heated); The development will

consist of vinyl exterior siding on all homes with some elevations consisting of brick or stone

accents on the fronts; All homes will have garages; and All front yards will be sodded.

❖ Notification was posted on the site on December 30, 2022.
❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on January 3, 2023. (P&Z)
❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning’s Public Hearing on February 27, 2023.
❖ Planning and Zoning Board voted 5-1 to recommend denial of the rezoning request on January 17, 2023.

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold Public Hearing and Consider Rezoning Request. 

4



5



6



Waterford Crossing Rezoning
Proposed Conditions:

 All lots will be single-family residential
 All lots will be a minimum of 7,000 SF.
 All homes will be a minimum of 1500 SF (Heated)
 The development will consist of vinyl exterior siding on all homes with some elevations 

consisting of brick or stone accents on the fronts.
 All homes will have garages
 All front yards will be sodded

7



REZONING MAP 
 

FOR 
 

WATERFORD CROSSING 
 
 
 

 Beginning at an existing iron pipe located in the southern right of way of Vernon 
White Road (NCSR 1310), said point being the northwest corner of the Town of Winterville 
property as recorded in Map Book 68, Page 157, thence leaving the southern right of way 
of Vernon White Road (NCSR 1310) and with the Town of Winterville property S 01-46-
20 E, 432.26 feet, thence S 80-34-54 E, 137.36 feet to a point in the western right of way 
of Railroad Street Extension, said point being the southeast corner of the Town of 
Winterville property as recorded in Map Book 68, Page 157; thence leaving the Town of 
Winterville property and with the western right of way line of Railroad Street Extension S 
17-06-56 W, 1319.39’ feet to a point, said point being the northeast corner of the Betty 
Louise Bridgers property as recorded in Deed Book 2201, Page 382 and Map Book 22, 
Page 65, thence with the northern line of the Bridgers property N 72-43-04 W, 390.78 feet 
to a point in the eastern line of Waterford Subdivision – Section 3 Phase 1 & Section 4 as 
recorded in Map Book 51, Page 66; thence with the eastern line of Waterford Subdivision 
– Section 3 Phase 1 & Section 4  N 19-51-22 E, 1080.23 feet, thence N 01-09-48 E, 
649.59 feet to the southern right of way of Vernon White Road (NCSR 1130), thence with 
the southern line of Vernon White Road S 75-41-58 E, 267.49 feet to the point of 
beginning containing 13.5 acres more or less. 
 
 
 

8



FO
XC

RO
FT

 LA
NE

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

St
re

et
 E

xt
.

(NCSR 1130) VERNON WHITE RD.

FO
XCR

OFT
CIR

CL
E

Se
ab

or
d 

Co
as

tli
ne

 R
ai

lr
oa

d

Be
ac

on
 D

r.

PA
RC

EL
# 

25
76

5
EX

IS
TI

N
G 

ZO
N

IN
G 

= 
AR

PR
OP

OS
ED

 Z
ON

IN
G 

= 
R-

6 
- C

UD
13

.5
± 

AC

Vi
ci

ni
ty

 M
ap

SC
AL

E:
 1

" =
 2

00
0'

0
10

0'
50

'
10

0'

1 
in

ch
 =

   
   

   
 ft

10
0

SC
AL

E

N
ot

es
:  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 
1.

AR
EA

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

 B
Y 

CO
O

RD
IN

AT
ES

.

2.
TH

IS
 M

AP
 W

AS
 P

RE
PA

RE
D 

FO
R 

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PU

RP
O

SE
S 

O
N

LY
 A

N
D 

IS
 N

O
T 

A
BO

U
N

DA
RY

 S
U

RV
EY

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

IE
S 

SH
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

.

3.
BO

U
N

DA
RY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 S
HO

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

 W
AS

 D
RA

W
N

 F
RO

M
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 P

RO
VI

DE
D 

BY
 T

HE
 P

IT
T 

CO
U

N
Y 

O
PI

S 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

N
D 

DO
ES

 N
O

T
RE

PR
ES

EN
T 

AN
 A

CT
U

AL
 F

IE
LD

 S
U

RV
EY

 B
Y 

TH
IS

 F
IR

M
.

C-
10

07

Ow
ne

r  
    

    
    

    
  

EN
C 

HO
M

E 
SO

LU
TI

O
N

S,
 L

LC
50

5 
E.

 R
ED

 B
AN

KS
 R

O
AD

GR
EE

N
VI

LL
E,

 N
C 

 2
78

58

SI
TE

VE
RN

O
N

 W
HI

TE
 R

D.

W
. F

IR
E 

TO
W

ER
 R

D.

REEDY BRANCH RD.

NC HWY 11

DA
VE

NP
O

RT
 F

AR
M

 R
D.

MILL ST.
FO

RL
IN

ES
 R

D.

W
. M

AI
N

 S
T.

N
C 

H
W

Y 
90

3

N. RAILROAD ST.

SH
EE

T
SC

AL
E

1 
of

 1
1"

 =
 1

00
' 

DA
TE

12
-1

6-
20

22

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

IN
TE

RV
IL

E,
 P

IT
T 

CO
U

N
TY

, N
C

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
M

AP
 F

O
R

W
AT

ER
FO

RD
 C

RO
SS

IN
G

PI
TT

 C
O

U
N

TY
 P

AR
CE

L 
N

O
. 2

57
65

N
C 

Li
ce

ns
e:

 P
-1

19
9

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S 

& 
PL

AN
N

ER
S

27
55

-B
 C

ha
rle

s 
Bl

vd
.

G
re

en
vi

lle
, N

C 
 2

78
58

(2
52

) 5
58

-0
88

8
w

w
w

.a
rk

co
ns

ul
tin

gg
ro

up
.c

om

Re
fe

re
nc

es
:  

    
    

D.
B.

 4
29

8,
 P

G.
 5

33

12
/1

6/
20

22

9



REZONING MAP 
 

FOR 
 

WATERFORD CROSSING 
 
 
 

 Beginning at an existing iron pipe located in the southern right of way of Vernon 
White Road (NCSR 1310), said point being the northwest corner of the Town of Winterville 
property as recorded in Map Book 68, Page 157, thence leaving the southern right of way 
of Vernon White Road (NCSR 1310) and with the Town of Winterville property S 01-46-
20 E, 432.26 feet, thence S 80-34-54 E, 137.36 feet to a point in the western right of way 
of Railroad Street Extension, said point being the southeast corner of the Town of 
Winterville property as recorded in Map Book 68, Page 157; thence leaving the Town of 
Winterville property and with the western right of way line of Railroad Street Extension S 
17-06-56 W, 1319.39’ feet to a point, said point being the northeast corner of the Betty 
Louise Bridgers property as recorded in Deed Book 2201, Page 382 and Map Book 22, 
Page 65, thence with the northern line of the Bridgers property N 72-43-04 W, 390.78 feet 
to a point in the eastern line of Waterford Subdivision – Section 3 Phase 1 & Section 4 as 
recorded in Map Book 51, Page 66; thence with the eastern line of Waterford Subdivision 
– Section 3 Phase 1 & Section 4  N 19-51-22 E, 1080.23 feet, thence N 01-09-48 E, 
649.59 feet to the southern right of way of Vernon White Road (NCSR 1130), thence with 
the southern line of Vernon White Road S 75-41-58 E, 267.49 feet to the point of 
beginning containing 13.5 acres more or less. 
 
 
 

10



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 

Rezoning Request- Public Hearing 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, March 13, 2023 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to hold a public hearing 
on the following request: 
 
The applicant, Rachael Tyre, has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 25765 (13.5 
Acres) as shown on the attached map from Agricultural Residential (AR) to R-6 CD.  Per the 
application, the proposed conditional zoning district would have the following conditions: All lots will 
be single-family residential; All lots will be a minimum of 7,000 SF; All homes will be a minimum of 
1500 SF (Heated); The development will consist of vinyl exterior siding on all homes with some 
elevations consisting of brick or stone accents on the fronts; All homes will have garages; and All 
front yards will be sodded.  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting stephen.penn@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
    

   

 

11



   

 

 

12



  

 
 
RACHAEL TYRE 
505-E RED BANKS RD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858      

 
 
ENC HOME SOULUTIONS LLC 
505-E RED BANKS RD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 
 
 
 

     

 
 
HABBAS SALAHELDIN 
2225 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

 
SYLVIA GREY DAVENPORT DAIL 
243 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
ELLIS FAMILY HOLDINGS 
324-A BEACON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
JOHN CHARLES FOUGNER 
5221 REEDY BRANCH RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

LANGSTON FARMS, LLC 
3718 VEEZEY STREET NW 
WASHINGTON, DC 20016 

     

WINTERVILLE HISTORICAL 
AND ARTS SOCIETY, INC. 
PO BOX 2014 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

BETTY LOUISE BRIDGES 
19 POE ELKIN ROAD 
CLARKTON, NC 28433 

  

  

 
ROBIN GRIMES MURRAY 
PO BOX 1043 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
VINCENT ARMISTEAD 
KAREN ARMISTEAD 
PO BOX 2458 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
ANNA LOUISE PARKER 
TERRY HOWARD 
PO BOX 462 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590   

  

FELICIA T INGRAM 
199 WORTHINGTON STREET 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

QUEENIE WORTHINGTON 
JAMES 
PO BOX 1063 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JENNE WARD DEE PATRICK 
3202 MORTON LANE 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

  

  

 
PAUL A CUOMO 
CELINE R CUOMO 
2304 FOXCROFT PL 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590      

 
DAVID BRUCE KOEN 
ALLYSON ZHENGRONG WU 
2305 FOXCROFT PL 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

PETER M STEIN 

DIAN M STEIN 

259 FOXCROFT LN 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

 
FEDERICO GASCO 
253 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
SEAN LACOV 
KRISTINE M LACOV 
245 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
       

MICHAEL G MOORE 
APRIL HILLARD MOORE 
237 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

KIRK D CRAWLEY 
NANCY HYLAND CRAWLEY 
227 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 
DEVELON RAY JACOBS 
KAREN WAINRIGHT JACOBS 
219 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
       

 
 
WILLIAM CHAPMAN 
209 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590  

    

  

WILLARD C KING 
EVA D KING 
201 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

RITCHIE A THOMAS 
MONIQUE B THOMAS 
193 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JOHNNY L FLEMING 
MARY A FLEMING 
185 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

JEFFERY BENTON FOSTER 
JEAN TRIPP FOSTER 
175 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JEFFERY S STALLINGS 
167 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

RAY H HYLOCK 
REBECCA D K HYLOCK 
159 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  
13



  

RUEBAN ROJAS HERRERA 
136 WORTHINGTON ST 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

PERSON X P HEIRS 
PO BOX 2196 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
LAURA WILLIAMS EDWARDS 
HEIRS 
2917 STOKES ROAD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

  

  

HELEN SPINKS KING 
PO BOX 1103 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

YVONNE SMITH WASHBURN 
JAMAAL D WASHBURN 
PO BOX 1521 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

CLIFTON ALAN HILL 
JANICE HOYT HILL 
133 FOXCROFT LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

 
CLYNN W BARBER III 
JENIFER M BARBER 
151 FOXCROFT LAN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 
EDWARD J BURRUS 
VALENCIA RODMAN BURRIS 
2203 FOXCROFT CL 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 
RICHARD C BRITT JR 
PAULA C BRITT 
2204 FOXCROFT CL 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

COREY T DREW 
DENISE DREW 
230 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

DAVID BLALOCK 
MARTHA O BLALOCK 
226 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 

  
 

14



Notice of Public Hearing 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, March 13, 2023 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to consider the 
following request: 
 
The applicant, Rachael Tyre, has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 25765 (13.5 
Acres) from Agricultural Residential (AR) to R-6 CD. Per the application, the proposed conditional 
zoning district would have the following conditions: All lots will be single-family residential; All lots will 
be a minimum of 7,000 SF; All homes will be a minimum of 1500 SF (Heated); The development will 
consist of vinyl exterior siding on all homes with some elevations consisting of brick or stone accents 
on the fronts; All homes will have garages; and All front yards will be sodded.  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting stephen.penn@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 

 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing – Waterford Crossing Rezoning. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, March 1, 2023 and 
Wednesday, March 8, 2023. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

15

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Rachael Tyre (ENC Home Solutions, LLC) 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-6 Conditional District 

CONDITIONS All lots will be single-family residential; All lots will be a minimum of 
7,000 SF; All homes will be a minimum of 1500 SF (Heated); The 
development will consist of vinyl exterior siding on all homes with 
some elevations consisting of brick or stone accents on the fronts; 
All homes will have garages; and All front yards will be sodded.  

LOCATION Railroad Street at is intersections with Worthington Road and 
Vernon White Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 25765 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on January 3, 2023.  Notification was posted on site on 
December 30, 2022.  41 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE 13.5 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Agricultural/Vacant 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR, OI Single Family Residential, 
Medical Office, IRS Office, etc. 

 W R-20 Single Family Residential 

E AR  Agricultural, Vacant, Wooded 

S R-6  Single Family Residential  

 

 

 

 

16



 

2 
Staff Report 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR  

 
R-6 CD 

MAX DENSITY 2 per acre 5-6 per acre 

 
TYPICAL USES 

AR - Low-density residential and 
agricultural uses; where urban 
development is expected.  
 

Higher density, single family 
residential. 

 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Vernon White Road – NCDOT Road 
Railroad Street – NCDOT Road 
Worthington Street – TOW Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Vernon White Road– 5400 
Railroad Street – 1400 
Worthington Street - 770 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

17



 

3 
Staff Report 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY TBD 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10 zoning districts would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as an Urban Neighborhood 

character area. The requested R-6 CD zoning district is generally consistent with this 

character area as defined by the future land use designation and will be within the 

density requirements (Urban Neighborhood allows up to 8 units per acre). 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Urban Neighborhood - General Character:   

1. Somewhat higher density, predominantly single-family residential housing.  Some 

attached housing and/or small scale commercial, retail, or restaurants allowed at select 

locations.   

 

(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   
 

Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when 
considering land use decisions. 

• Identified as Urban Neighborhood Character Area. 
 
(Land Use) Policy 6:  Support higher density housing options in strategic 
locations. 
 

Strategy 6.1:  Encourage housing options in locations within walking 
distance to of commercial and mixed-use areas. 

• Property is located in close proximity to downtown and commercial 
properties along Beacon Drive. 

18



 

4 
Staff Report 

 
(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a 
family-friendly community. 

 
Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Urban 
Neighborhood areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

• Property identified as Urban Neighborhood Character Area. 
 

  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

The applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 13.5-acre property is currently vacant.  The properties North of the request (across 
Vernon White Road) are zoned AR (single-family residential) and OI (medical office, IRS 
office, Financial office, etc.).   West of the request is zoned R-20 consisting of a single-family 
residential development (Waterford).   South of the request is zoned R-6 and consists of 
single-family residential.  East of the property (across Railroad Street) is zoned AR and is 
partially wooded/vacant. 
 
The R-6 CD rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is compatible with the existing development and 
trends in the surrounding area. There is existing R-6 zoning adjacent to the south.  The 
proposed R-6 CD zoning district falls within the density recommendations provided within the 
Urban Neighborhood character area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 13.5 acres from AR to 

R-6 CD. 

 

Planning and Zoning Board voted 5-1 to recommend denial of the rezoning 

request on January 17, 2023. 

19



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Gray Point Motors – Rezoning Request. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Notice of Public Hearing, Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Linda Brock Best. 

 

Location: Chapman Street at its intersection with Depot Street. 

 

Parcel Numbers: 20628 and 28376 

 

Site Data: 3.17 acres 

 

Current Zoning District: MR-CD 

 

Proposed Zoning District: GB-CD 

 

❖ Proposed Zoning Districts:  General Business with the condition “to be able to build a used car dealership 

with a mechanic shop.” 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on December 2, 2022. (P&Z). 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning’s Public Hearing on February 27, 2023. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on December 2, 2022. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board voted 5-1 recommending denial of the rezoning request on January 17, 2023. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold Public Hearing and Consider Rezoning Request. 

 

20



21



22



23



24



Situated in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at an iron in the western right-of-way line of Chapman Street, said iron being the northeast 

corner of the Barber property; and running thence North 83 deg. 46 min. West 497 feet to an iron, said 

iron being the northwest corner of the Hardee property and NC HWY 11 right of way; thence running 

North 11 deg. 45 min. East 713 feet along the NC HWY 11 right of way to an iron, and thence running 

South 83 deg. 46 min. East 477 feet to an iron, said iron being located in the western right-of-way line of 

Chapman Street, and thence along the western right-of-way of Chapman Street in a South 06 deg. 44' 

West 150 feet to an iron; and thence North 83 deg. 45 min. West 150 feet to an iron; and thence South 06 

deg. 44 min. West 100 feet to an iron; and then South 83 deg. 46 min. East 150 feet to an iron, said iron 

being in the western right-of -way of Chapman Street, and thence along the western right-of-way of 

Chapman Street in a southerly direction 80 feet to an iron, the point of beginning. 

 

25



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 

Rezoning Request- Public Hearing 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday March 13, 2023 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to hold a public hearing 
on the following request: 
 
Linda Brock Best c/o Baldwin Design Consultants has submitted a rezoning application to rezone 
Parcels 20628 and 28376 (3.27 Acres) as shown on the attached map from Multifamily Residential 
(MR-CD) to General Business (GB-CD).  Per the application, the proposed conditional district is “to 
be able to build a used car dealership with a mechanic shop.”  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting stephen.penn@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
    

   

 

   

 
26



 

 

 

 

 

 

27



  

Clyn Willard Barber, Jr. 
Edna Paramore Barber 
2490 Red Forbes Road 
Winterville NC 28590      

GKA, Inc 
PO Box 611 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

 
Harvey Lee Joyner Life Estate 
Barbara Hines Joyner Life Estate 
104 Depot Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 

  

  

 
R E Davenport Jr Family Ltd 
Partnership 
PO Box 66 
Farmville, NC 27828 
 

     

Linda Brock Best 
David Earl Brock Heirs 
134 Howard Blvd 
Newport, NC 28570      

Evelyn Jarvis Branch 
PO Box 316 
Winterville, NC 28590   

  

Soddy & Soddy Properties, LLC 
5351 Reedy Branch Road 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

E & S Homes, LLC 
2579 Chapman Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

Kenneth Ross 
1711 Ross Lane 
Greenville, NC 27834 
   

  

 
Travis Oscar Hardee 
Ellen Roebuck Hardee 
5351 Reedy Branch Road 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 

     

 
Melinda Elizabeth Hines 
121 Depot Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

Gateway Christian Center of 
Greenville Inc. 
PO Box 1329 
Winterville, NC 28590 
   

  

 
Michael R. Weldin 
Joyce H. Weldin 
135 Depot Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 
 

 

     

 
Jamie L. Keeter 
Jean Anne Keeter 
PO Box 14 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 

     

 
Walter Ashley Dail, Jr 
Judith Rose Dail 
PO Box 808 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 

  

  

 
Tracey Hardee Dickerson 
Jamie Lynn Hardee Smith 
4077 Blackjack Simpson Rd 
Greenville, NC 27858 

 
              

                 

                 

                 

                 

 28



Notice of Public Hearing 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday March 13, 2023 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to consider the 
following request: 
 
Linda Brock Best c/o Baldwin Design Consultants has submitted a rezoning application to rezone 
Parcels 20628 and 28376 (3.27 Acres) from Multifamily Residential (MR-CD) to General Business 
(GB-CD). Per the application, the proposed conditional district is “to be able to build a used car 
dealership with a mechanic shop.”  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting stephen.penn@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos .If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 

 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing – Linda Brock Best Rezoning. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, March 1, 2023 and 
Wednesday, March 8, 2023. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

29

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Linda Brock Bes 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST General Business (GB) – Conditional District 

CONDITIONS Used car dealership with a mechanic shop. 

LOCATION Chapman Street / Depot Street 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 15006, 11636, 11638, 82096, 82094 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on December 2, 2022.  Notification was posted on site on 
December 2, 2022.  16 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE 3.17 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant/ Wooded 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N GB Church 

 W GB Agricultural 

E R-6/CB Single Family Residential, 
Commercial 

S R-6/GB Single Family Residential, 
Commercial  

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
MR-CD  

 
GB-CD 

MAX DENSITY TBD TBD 

 
TYPICAL USES 

MR- High-density residential 
neighborhoods.  
 

Accommodates business that 
serve the traveling public, 
require large amounts of land 
and are not oriented to the 
pedestrian shopper.  

30



 

2 
Staff Report 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site Plan / Construction Plan required. 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Chapman Street – TOW Street 
Church Street Ext – TOW Street 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

N/A 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N?A  

OTHER N/A 

 
 

 

 

 

 

31



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed GB-CD (used car dealership with a mechanic shop) zoning districts would not 
allow land uses that are compatible with the general character of the area.  The property is 
in a location that serves as the primary entrance to downtown and as a walkable 
neighborhood with small-scale businesses. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Mixed Use Center character 

area. Mixed Use Centers allow flexibility to respond to market demands by emphasizing 

the form of development over use or intensity.  These areas feel made for people and 

have just a little “hustle and bustle” with some small town hospitality mixed in.  The 

requested GB-CD zoning district is not consistent with this character area as defined by 

the future land use designation.   

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Mixed Use Center - General Character:   

1. Mix of commercial, retail, restaurants and service-oriented businesses, with a variety of 

residential options, including multi-family, townhomes, and upper-story residential.  

Offices also potentially on upper floors.  Walkable places with a pedestrian-focused 

“downtown” feel. 

 

(Downtown) Policy 1:  Live/work/play downtown:   
 

Strategy 1.1:  Allow people to live near downtown Winterville, by 
encouraging and allowing more dense residential development within 
walking distance to downtown. 

• The Small Area Study included in the Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
shows this property as ideal for residential infill. 

 
Strategy 1.3:  Expand office and commercial uses on the edges of 
downtown where there is limited conflict with established residential areas. 

• The Land Use Plan shows the ideal area for commercial development 
within the downtown area is along Main Street.   

 
 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

32



 

4 
Staff Report 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 3.17-acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned GB 
(Gateway Church); West (across Winterville Pkwy) of the request is zoned GB 
(vacant/agricultural).   South of the request is zoned R-6 and GB (existing single family 
residential and commercial).  East of the property is zoned R-6 and CB (existing single family 
residential and commercial). 
 
While some light commercial use may be appropriate, the proposed use of a used car 
dealership with a mechanic shop is not consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
Therefore, the rezoning request is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is not compatible with the existing development 
and trends in the surrounding area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends denial of the rezoning request for the 3.17 acres from MR-CD 

to GB-CD. 

 

Planning and Zoning Board recommended denial  (5-1) of the request on January 

17, 2023. 

33



34



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meeting listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/6/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 
Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ January 23, 2023 Vision Setting Meeting Minutes; and 

➢ February 13, 2023 Regular Council Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Minutes. 

 

35



 

Page 1 of 15 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JANUARY 23, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

VISION SETTING MEETING 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 6:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Johnny Moye, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
BLESSING: Mayor Hines gave the blessing. 
 
BREAK FOR DINNER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker requested an amendment to the Agenda to add the Safe Routes to Schools 
Application. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

1. Safe Routes to Schools Application. 
 

36



 

Page 2 of 15 

 
 

37



 

Page 3 of 15 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve The 
Resolution and Letter of Support for the Safe Routes to Schools Application. Motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 
  

38



 

Page 4 of 15 

2. State of the Budget - FY 2023-2024: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager; Anthony Bowers, Assistant 
Town Manager; and Jessica Manning, Finance Director. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

39



 

Page 5 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

40



 

Page 6 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

41



 

Page 7 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

42



 

Page 8 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

43



 

Page 9 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

44



 

Page 10 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

45



 

Page 11 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

46



 

Page 12 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Council and Staff discussed the information presented and asked and fielded questions to provide a 
clear understanding of the financial status of the Town. 

47



 

Page 13 of 15 

3. Council Vision Setting Process/Discussion – Town Manager Parker. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

48



 

Page 14 of 15 

 

 
 

 
 

 

49



 

Page 15 of 15 

Council and Staff discussed the information presented and asked and fielded questions to provide a 
clear understanding of the future direction of the Town. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:54 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

50



 

Page 1 of 10 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Johnny Moye, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman (excused) 
Brandy Harrell, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Stephen Penn, Economic Development Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Elder Melvin Tilley, Th.D., Mt. Zion FWB Church, Pinetown-Yeatesville Community, 
gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public and recognized dignitaries present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Town Manager Parker noted amendments to the agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 3-0. Motion carried, 3-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, 
Councilman Moore, and Councilman Rice voted to approve the motion. 
 
  

51



 

Page 2 of 10 

INSTALLATION AND OATH OF OFFICE OF NEWLY APPOINTED TOWN OFFICIALS: 
 
Councilwoman Brandy Harrell was sworn in by the Honorable Elizabeth Heath, Chief District Court 
Judge, 8th Judicial District. 
Council took a short break. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Don Rhodes, Chair and Dr. Ethan Lenker, Superintendent – Pitt Council Schools. 
 
Dr. Lenker discussed the construction of the new building at AG Cox and thanked the Town for the 
SRO Assistance. Mr. Rhodes noted the good working relationship with Town. 
 
RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES: 
 
Public Works Director McGuffin introduced Seth Garris, Utility Pump Maintenance Mechanic in the 
Public Works Department. Mr. Garris noted he was grateful to be here and meeting people. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey read the Black History Month Proclamation. 
 

52



 

Page 3 of 10 

 
  

53



 

Page 4 of 10 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Subdivision Ordinance Amendments: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 

54



 

Page 5 of 10 

 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like in opposition to the 
Subdivision Ordinance Amendments. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the Amendments. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the Public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve the 
Subdivision Ordinance Amendments. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, 
Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted to approve the motion. 
 
 
System Development Fees: Assistant Town Manager the following information. 
 
At your December meeting The Wooten Company presented the Town Council with the calculations for 
charging developers fees associated with the increase demand. The Wooten Company established the 
legal amount which is limited to $4,330 for water and sewer improvements for the Town of Winterville. 
This is an increase, and staff is recommending that we adopt the fee at 50% ($2,165) of the allowable 
amount. You can find this on page 2 of the System Development Fee Analysis that you were provided. 
This will put the Town in the same price range as our neighbors. We were required to allow 45 days to 
pass from the presentation of the SDF Analysis before a rate can be adopted. We have advertised in 
The Daily Reflector on December 20th, 2022, and it was also advertised on January 17th, 2023. We 
have only received one call with a couple of questions from Landon Weaver with Bill Clark Homes. 
Once the public hearing is complete a vote can be taken to adopt the new system development fee. 
 

55



 

Page 6 of 10 

 
 

56



 

Page 7 of 10 

Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition to the 
System Development Fees. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the System Development Fees. No one 
spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the Public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve the 
System Development Fees at $2,165. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, 
Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Hines read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
1. Brandy Daniels, 2945 Foxglove Drive commented on the appointment process and progress with 

Police relations. 
 
2. Senator Kandie Smith greeted Council and solicited their input for her efforts in Raleigh. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Councilman Moore requested that all Consent Agenda Items be removed except Item 1. 
 
Items remaining on the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ January 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve the 
January 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem 
Moye, Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the 
motion. 
 
Discussion and action continued on remaining Consent Agenda items. 
 
2. Fee and Rate Schedule. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the amended 
Rate and Fee Schedule. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman 
Moore, Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. 
 
3. ARP Policies. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the ARP 
Policies. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, 
Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion 
 
4. Budget Amendment 2022-2023-5 and Old Business Items 1. and 2. (Contract Amendment for 

Pump Station Redesign with Rivers and Associates. and Contract Amendment for General Services 
with Wooten Company. 

 

57



 

Page 8 of 10 

Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the Budget 
Amendment 2022-2023-5, Contract Amendment for Pump Station Redesign with Rivers and 
Associates; and Contract Amendment for General Services with Wooten Company. Motion 
carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, and 
Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. 
 
5. & 6. Gray Point Motors Rezoning – Schedule Public Hearing – March 13, 2023 and Waterford 
Crossing Rezoning – Schedule Public Hearing – March 13, 2023. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve scheduling 
of Public Hearings on March 13, 2023 for Gray Point Motors Rezoning and Waterford Crossing 
Rezoning. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, 
Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
3. Electric Rate Discussion: 
 
Electric Director Sutton noted that gas rates are hedging down due to the mild winter. Councilman 
Moore said he wants a 20% reduction. Assistant Town Manager Bowers said the Town lost money last 
month and only budget amendments have helped. Town Manager Parker said we have lost money 
since July. Assistant Town Manager Bowers said cut-offs have been consistent between 55-60, all but 
15 were back on the next day. Councilman Moore asked about the assistance payment card. Assistant 
Town Manager Bowers discussed the Town’s assistance process; 9 helped to this point for a $85 
credit. We are still pushing and marketing the program. Mayor Hines said he met with officials and all 
are feeling the pinch, glad we have something in place. Mayor Pro Tem Moye asked is this the Greene 
Lamp Assistance. Assistant Town Manager Bowers said yes, and it is for only Winterville citizens. 
Mayor Hines said encourage people to participate. Assistant Town Manager Bowers we will work with 
qualifying citizens. Mayor Pro Tem Moye said this is $85 for assistance. Assistant Town Manager 
Bowers yes, based on need and Greene Lamp is vetting applicants.  
 
4. Discussion of Town Council Rules of Procedure: 
 
Council and Staff discussed the present Rules of Procedure and if there is a desire and need to make 
any changes. It was noted that discussions over last several months suggest the need to modify or do 
away or some other need for guidance. A Policy versus Ordinances; has pros and cons. Vacancies has 
nuances. Council discussed the varieties of needs and directions to go. Council is to send their 
thoughts and ideas to Town Attorney Lassiter for him to pull together for further discussion, direction, 
and development. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Councilman Moore brought up the idea of starting meetings at 6:00 pm. Mayor Pro Tem Moye asked if 
we should get input from citizens. Town Attorney Lassiter noted we would just need to get information 
out to the public in the normal processes. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the change 
of the Regular Council Meeting to 6:00 pm starting May 6, 2023. Motion carried, 3-1. Councilman 
Moore, Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor and Mayor Pro Tem Moye 
opposed the motion. 
 
Agenda Review Meeting: Town Manager Parker discussed having a session on the Thursday prior to 
the regular meeting to review and notify content on the Agenda. No decisions can be made. 
 

58



 

Page 9 of 10 

Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve holding the 
agenda review meetings starting Thursday, March 9, 2023 at 4:00 pm. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, 
and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Councilman Moore NCDOT conversation. 
 
Councilman Moore Parking problems. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 
1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, February 20, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
2. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
3. Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, February 23, 2023 @ 7:00 – Executive Conference 

Room. 
4. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 
5. Town Manager Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, March 9, 2023 @ 4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive 

Conference Room. 
6. Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, March 13, 2023 @ 7:00 pm. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: Reminder of Closed Session. 
 
Councilwoman Harrell: Mention Drainage Grants she was aware that Town may be able to apply. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Moye: Wish a Happy Valentines to all. 
 
Councilman Rice: Wish a Happy Valentines to all. 
 
Councilman Moore: Wish a Happy Valentines to all. 
 
Manager Parker: None 
 
Mayor Hines: Thanks to Town Attorney Lassiter and that we are all here for the common cause. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to go into Closed 
Session. 
NCGS § 143-318.11. (3). To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order 
to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is 
hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing 
herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be open 
merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public body 
may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of a claim, 
judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. If the public body has approved or 
considered a settlement, other than a malpractice settlement by or on behalf of a hospital, in closed 

59



 

Page 10 of 10 

session, the terms of that settlement shall be reported to the public body and entered into its minutes as 
soon as possible within a reasonable time after the settlement is concluded 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, Councilman Rice, 
and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. Went into Closed Session at 9:26 pm. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Harrell and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Mayor Pro Tem Moye, Councilman Moore, 
Councilman Rice, and Councilwoman Harrell voted in favor of the motion. Meeting adjourned at 
9:43 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

60



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Budget Calendar Amendment. 

Action Requested: Approval of Budget Calendar Amendment Minutes. 

Attachment: Budget Calendar Amendment. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/6/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the Budget Calendar Amendment changing date of Town Council & Manager Progress Meeting 

to Monday, May 1, 2023 at 6:00 pm in Town Hall Executive Conference Room. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Budget Calendar Amendment. 

 

61



 

Approved by Town Council - 12/12/2023 / Amended – 03/13/2023 
Please NOTE the times of the meetings vary. 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
FY 2023-2024 

BUDGET CALENDAR 
 

 

 

DATE DESCRIPTION TIME LOCATION 

Monday, January 23, 2023 Town Council Vision Setting 
Meeting 

6:00 pm THAR 

Monday, February 20, 2023 Distribution of Budget Worksheets 
to Management Team 

NA TMGR OFFICE 

Friday, March 24, 2023 Management Team 
Recommendations Due 

NA TMGR OFFICE 

Monday, May 1, 2023 Town Council & Manager Progress 
Meeting 

6:00 pm THECR 

May 8-12, 2023 Manager Review with Management 
Team  

N/A TMGR OFFICE 

Monday, May 22, 2023 Hand delivery of the 
Recommended Budget 

N/A NA 

Tuesday, May 23, 2023 Town Council Budget Work 
Sessions 

6:00 pm THAR 

Thursday, May 25, 2023 Town Council Budget Work 
Sessions 

6:00 pm THAR 

Monday, June 5, 2023 Public Hearing 6:00 pm THAR 

Monday, June 12, 2023 Adoption of the FY 2023-2024 
Budget Ordinance 

6:00 pm THAR 

Friday, July 1, 2023 Fiscal Year Begins NA NA 
 

THAR: 
Town Hall Assembly Room 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

THECR: 
Executive Conference Room 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

TMGR Office 
Town Manager’s Office 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

DEPOT: 
Winterville Train Depot 
Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

62

don.harvey
Highlight



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: DPD Properties II, LLC. – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition with Legal Description, Annexation Map, Resolution Directing Clerk to 
investigate Sufficiency, Draft Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning & Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

DPD Properties II, LLC., property owner of Parcel 60147, is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Location: 2903 Storage Lane; North-eastern corner of Highway 11 and Reedy Branch Road. 

 

Size: 9.68 Acres 

 

Zoned: Industrial Zone. 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/13/2023). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/10/2023). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/8/2023). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Annexation. 

 

63



64



65



 

 

Resolution No. 23-R-031 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

DPD PROPERTIES II, LLC 
PARCEL 60147 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received October 18, 2022 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

66



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

DPD PROPERTIES II, LLC 
PARCEL 60147 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 14th day of March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

67



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Church of the Open Door, Inc. – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition with Legal Description, Annexation Map, Resolution Directing Clerk to 
investigate Sufficiency, Draft Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning & Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Church of the Open Door, INC., property owner of Parcel 86748, is applying for annexation of a newly 

purchased portion of their land into the Town limits. 

 

Location: 4584 Reedy Branch Road. 

 

Size: 19.32 Acres. 

 

Zoned: Agricultural Residential (AR). 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/13/2023). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/10/2023). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/8/2023). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Annexation. 

 

68



69

Raluser9
Text Box
Beginning at an existing iron rod in the western right-of-way of Reedy Branch Road, being the common property corner of Sutton Land Holdings, LLC (parcel #88050) and Church of the Open Door Inc. (parcel #86748), also being THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, thence continuing along the common property line of Sutton Land Holdings, LLC and Church of the Open Door Inc. a bearing of S76°48’20”W a distance of 2,174.17 feet to a point in the centerline of Swift Creek Canal, thence cornering and following the centerline of Swift Creek Canal a bearing of S19°31’35”E a distance of 435.91 feet to a point in the centerline of Swift Creek Canal, thence cornering and leaving the centerline of Swift Creek Canal N76°42’46”E a distance of 1,742.45 feet to a point, also being the common property corner of Church of the Open Door Inc. (parcel #86748) and James J. Ferenczy (parcel #50872), thence cornering a bearing of N10°38’38”E a distance of 181.38 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence cornering a bearing of S79°08’43”E a distance of 14.35 feet to a point being the common property corner of Church of the Open Door Inc. (parcel #86748), James J. Ferenczy (parcel #50872) and Jason Tremain Barnett (parcel #34183), thence cornering a bearing of N10°45’16”E a distance of 125.22 feet to an existing iron rod, thence cornering a bearing of S79°04’10”E a distance on 160.22 feet to an existing iron pipe in the western right-of-way of Reedy Branch Road, thence cornering and following the western right-of-way of Reedy Branch Road a bearing of N11°09’09”E a distance of 243.03 feet to an existing iron rod and THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, containing 19.32 acres (841,364.278 square feet), more or less, and being a portion of the 51.98 acre tract, more or less, owned by The Church of the Open Door Inc. (parcel #86748), referenced in Deed Book 3930 Page 40 dated June 2nd, 2020, recorded with the Pitt County Register of Deeds Office.



70



 

 

Resolution No. 23-R-032 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

CHURCH OF THE OPEN DOOR, INC. 
PARCEL 86748 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received December 6, 2022 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

71



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

CHURCH OF THE OPEN DOOR, INC. 
PARCEL 86748 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 14th day of March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

72



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Aces For Autism – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition with Legal Description, Annexation Map, Resolution Directing Clerk to 
investigate Sufficiency, Draft Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning & Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Kyle Robinson of Aces For Autism, property owner of Parcel 14643, is applying for annexation into the Town 

limits. 

 

Location: 700 Samuel Robinson Way; South of Worthington Road, roughly 790 feet east of the Worthington 

and Old Tar Road intersection. 

 

Size: 23.372 Acres. 

 

Zoned: Office & Institutional Zoning. (O&I). 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/13/2023). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/10/2023). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/8/2023). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Annexation. 

 

73



74



ANNEXATION PLAT 
 

FOR 
 

ACES FOR AUTISM 
 
 

 Beginning at an existing rebar corner having NC Grid Coordinates N 649771.87 and E 
2481392.55, the POINT OF BEGINNING; said rebar corner being located in the southern right of 
way of Worthington Road (SR 1711) and being the northwest property corner of the Aces for 
Autism property as recorded in Deed Book 3729, Page 230 and Map Book 78, Page 16, Pitt 
County Registry; thence running along the southern right of way of Worthington Road S 84-00-55 
E, 14.37 feet to a point located on the southern right of way of Worthington Road, thence 
continuing along the southern right of way of Worthington Road S 83-53-45 E, 468.26 feet to a 
point located on the southern right of way of Worthington Road; thence continuing along the 
southern right of way of Worthington Road S 84-39-47 E, 101.17 feet to an existing rebar corner 
located on the southern right of way of Worthington Road; thence continuing along the southern 
right of way of Worthington Road S 87-20-33 E, 101.11 feet to an existing rebar corner located 
on the southern right of way of Worthington Road, said corner being the northwestern corner of 
the Christ Covenant School property recorded in Map Book 78, Page 16, Pitt County Registry, 
thence leaving the southern right of way of Worthington Road and with the western line of the 
Christ Covenant School property recorded in Map Book 78, Page 16 and the eastern line of the 
Aces for Autism property recorded in Map Book 78, Page 16 S 14-13-37 W, 10.00 feet to an 
existing rebar corner; thence continuing with said line S 14-13-37 W, 320.79 feet to an existing 
rebar corner; thence continuing with said line S 21-16-30 W, 191.63 feet to an existing rebar 
corner; thence continuing with said line S 30-02-32 W, 868.47 feet to an existing iron pipe; said 
iron pipe being the southwest corner of the Christ Covenant School property recorded in Map 
Book 78, Page 16, said corner being the southeast corner of the Aces for Autism property 
recorded in Map Book 78, Page 16, and said corner also being in the northern line of the Karl W. 
McLawhorn, Jr. property recorded in Map Book 76, Page 181 Pitt County Registry; thence 
cornering and running with the southern line of the Aces for Autism property recorded in Map 
Book 78, Page 16 and the northern line of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property recorded in Map 
Book 76, Page 181 N 77-53-41 W, 696.69 feet to an existing rebar corner, said corner being the 
common corner between the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property recorded in Map Book 76, Page 
181 and the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property recorded in Deed Book 1756, Page 302 Pitt County 
Registry; thence continuing with the northern line of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property recorded 
in Deed Book 1756, Page 302 and the southern line of the Aces for Autism property recorded in 
Map Book 78, Page 16 N 77-41-10 W, 122.23 feet to an existing iron pipe; said iron pipe being 
the southwest corner of the Aces for Autism property recorded in Map Book 78, Page 16 and 
being in the eastern line of the Ashpley Marie Craft property recorded in Deed Book 1074, Page 
798 Pitt County Registry; thence cornering and running with the western Aces for Autism line and 
the eastern Ashpley Marie Craft line N 31-37-28 E, 397.38 feet to an existing iron pipe; said iron 
pipe being the northeast corner of the Ashpley Marie Craft property recorded in Deed Book 1074, 
Page 798 and the southeast corner of the Peggy Craft Cliborne property recorded in Map Book 
24, Page 96 Pitt County Registry; thence continuing with the western Aces for Autism line and 
the eastern Peggy Craft Cliborne line N 31-37-28 E, 946.40 feet to the point of beginning 
containing 23.372 acres. 

75



P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W
 O

N
L

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
 R

E
C

O
R

D
A

T
IO

N
,

C
O

N
V

E
Y

A
N

C
E

S
 O

R
 S

A
L

E
S

76



 

 

Resolution No. 23-R-033 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

ACES FOR AUTISM 
PARCEL 14643 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received August 25, 2022 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

77



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

ACES FOR AUTISM 

PARCEL 14643 

 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 14th day of March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

78



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Brookfield Section 4, Phase 1 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Legal Description, Annexation Map, Resolution Directing Clerk to 
investigate Sufficiency, Draft Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/6/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Will Kuhn, partner and owner of Parcel 25766 (Cooper Island Development LLC.), is applying for the 

annexation of Brookfield Section 4, Phase 1. 

 

Location: North-Western Corner of Old Tar Road and Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Size: 13.227 Acres. 

 

Zoned: R-10 CD. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/13/2023). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/10/2023). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/8/2023). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Annexation. 

 

79



80



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

FOR 

 

BROOKFIELD – SECTION 4, PHASE 1 

 

 

Beginning at an existing iron pipe at the southwest corner of Lot 11, Brookfield Section 2 

as recorded in Map Book 80, Page 157, the POINT OF BEGINNING; said iron pipe being the 

northwest property corner of the Cooper Island Development, LLC property as recorded in Deed 

Book 3573, Page 522, Pitt County Registry; thence running along the southern line of Brookfield, 

Section 2 as recorded in Map Book 80, Page 157, Pitt County Registry and Brookfield, Section 

1 as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 58, Pitt County Registry S 89-53-57 E, 623.53 feet to an 

existing iron pipe; thence continuing with the southern line of Brookfield, Section 1 as recorded 

in Map Book 78, Page 58, Pitt County Registry S 88-21-41 E, 295.01 feet to an existing iron pipe 

located in the southern line of Lot 2 Brookfield Section 1; thence cornering and with the southern 

line of Brookfield, Section 1 as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 58, Pitt County Registry and the 

southern line of the now or formerly Linda Vernelson McLawhorn property recorded in Deed 

Book 946, Page 435 and Map Book 78, Page 175, Pitt County Registry N 61-16-35 E, 268.28 

feet to a point in the western right of way line of Old Tar Road (NCSR 1700); thence cornering 

and running with the western right of way of Old Tar Road (NCSR 1700) the following courses 

and distances; S 12-33-42 E, 30.96 feet; thence S 12-45-44 E, 50.26 feet; thence S 13-20-14 E, 

51.42 feet; thence S 13-29-29 E, 51.91 feet; thence S 13-54-53 E, 49.50 feet; thence S 14-07-

25 E, 52.53 feet; thence S 14-12-16 E, 52.39 feet; thence S 14-02-02 E, 51.30 feet; thence S 

13-53-12 E, 50.96 feet; thence S 14-16-16 E, 23.12 feet; thence S 31-35-52 W, 90.88 feet to a 

point in the northern right of way line of Laurie Ellis Road (NCSR 1713); thence cornering and 

with the northern right of way line of Laurie Ellis Road (NCSR 1713) S 76-43-01 W, 907.78 feet; 

thence S 77-50-08 W, 49.08 feet; thence S 80-11-20 W, 48.90 feet to an existing iron pipe, said 

iron pipe being the southeast corner of Lot 107 Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 2 as recorded in 

Map Book 85, Page 69, Pitt County Registry; thence leaving the northern right of way line of 

Laurie Ellis Road and with the eastern line of Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 2 as recorded in 

Map Book 85, Page 69, Pitt County Registry, N 32-12-47 W, 180.94 feet to an existing iron pipe 

in the eastern line of Lot 106 Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 1; thence N 42-05-45 E, 186.80 feet 

to an existing iron pipe being the southeast corner of Lot 104 Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 2; 

thence N 47-54-15 W, 134.55 feet to an existing iron pipe in the southern right of way line of 

Norberry Drive; thence with the Norberry Drive right of way N 34-40-07 E, 26.83 feet to a point; 

thence N 55-19-53 W, 60.00 feet to an existing iron pipe, said pipe being the northeast corner 

of Lot 129 Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 2; thence leaving the Norberry Drive right of way and 

with the northern line of Lot 129 Brookfield – Section 4, Phase 2 N 51-49-02 W, 182.02 feet to a 

point, said point being in the eastern line of Lot 15 Brookfield Section 3 as recorded in Map Book 

81, Page 192, Pitt County Registry; thence with the eastern line of Lot 15 Brookfield Section 3 

N 09-55-15 E, 70.00 feet to the Point of Beginning containing 13.227 acres more or less. 

81



82



 

 

Resolution No. 23-R-034 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

BROOKFIELD SECTION 4, PHASE 1 
PARCEL 25766 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received February 27, 2027 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

83



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

BROOKFIELD SECTION 4, PHASE 1 

PARCEL 25766 

 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 14th day of March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

84



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. 

Action Requested: Approval of the Audit Contract with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachment: Audit Contract. 

Prepared By: Jessica Manning, Finance Director Date: 3/7/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/3/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. We are recommending that we use Carr, Riggs, and Ingram out of Goldsboro 

again this year. We have used them for the last 5 audit years and have been pleased with their services. 

Last year our audit was completed and submitted to the LGC on time. Mr. Jordan and his staff are highly 

recognized in the state. Audit firms specializing in local government audits are becoming more difficult to 

contract, as well as finding a firm that can be depended on to complete the audit in a timely manner. 

Budgetary Impact: This is accounted for in the operating budget for the Finance Department. The value of 
the contract is $45,700. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Audit Contract. 

 

85



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022 

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within four months of FYE 

1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the 
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall 
be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the aggregate 
DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-
major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types). The basic 
financial statements shall include budgetary comparison information in a budgetary comparison statement, 
rather than as RSI, for the General Fund and any annually budgeted Special Revenue funds.

2. At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct the audit and render the report in accordance with GAAS. The 
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) if the 
Governmental Unit expended $100,000 or more in combined Federal and State financial assistance during the 
reporting period. The auditor shall perform a Single Audit if required by Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200 Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) or the State Single Audit Implementation Act. This audit and all associated audit 
documentation may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State 
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If 
the audit requires a federal single audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), it is 
recommended that the Auditor and Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this 
contract, which party is responsible for submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to 
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512).

Effective for audits of fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2023, the LGC will allow auditors to consider whether 
a unit qualifies as a State low-risk auditee based upon federal criteria in the Uniform Guidance
§200.520(a), and (b) through (e) as it applies to State awards. In addition to the federal criteria in the Uniform 
Guidance, audits must have been submitted timely to the LGC. If in the reporting year, or in either of the two 
previous years, the unit reported a Financial Performance Indicator of Concern that the audit was late, then

Page 1

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit 

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending Date Audit Will Be Submitted to LGC 

86



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022 

3. If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

4. This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC Staff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 2018 revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.
If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Auditing Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of 
audit submitted to LGC Staff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend the audit 
fee or the date that the audit report will be submitted to the LGC, an amended contract along with a written 
explanation of the change shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

7. It is agreed that GAAS include a review of the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) systems of internal control 
and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements 
applicable thereto; that the Auditor shall make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written 
report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his/her findings, together with his recommendations for 
improvement. That written report shall include all matters defined as “significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that 
report with the Secretary of the LGC.

For GAAS or Government Auditing Standards audits, if an auditor issues an AU-C §260 report, commonly 
referred to as “Governance Letter,” LGC staff does not require the report to be submitted unless the auditor 
cites significant findings or issues from the audit, as defined in AU-C §260.12 - .14.  This would include issues 
such as difficulties encountered during the audit, significant or unusual transactions, uncorrected 
misstatements, matters that are difficult or contentious reviewed with those charged with governance, and other 
significant matters.

Page 2 

the report was not submitted timely for State low-risk auditee status. Please refer to "Discussion of Single 
Audits in North Carolina" on the LGC's website for more information. 

If the audit and Auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review 
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC State Board).

87



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022 

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the
approval of the Secretary of the LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures
related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit's 
records for audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related investigations, or any other audit- related 
work in the State of North Carolina. Approval is also required for the Alternative Compliance Examination 
Engagement for auditing the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
expenditures as allowed by US Treasury. Approval is not required on audit contracts and invoices for
system improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature.

9. Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit(s) until 
the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. This also includes any progress billings
[G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447]. All invoices for audit work shall be submitted in PDF format to the Secretary
of the LGC for approval. the invoice marked 'approved' with approval date shall be returned to the Auditor
to present to the Governmental Unit(s) for payment. This paragraph is not applicable to contracts for audits
of hospitals.

10. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental
Unit(s) shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC if required, the fee, which includes 
any costs the Auditor may incur from work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program 
required by third parties (federal and state grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance 
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC State 
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

11. If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC Staff, 
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating 
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC Staff 
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance 
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the 
bond documents.

12. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This 
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

13. If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff.

Page 3 
88



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022

requesting the return of records. Page 4 

14. The Auditor shall submit the report of audit in PDF format to LGC Staff. For audits of units other than 
hospitals, the audit report should be submitted when (or prior to) submitting the final invoice for services 
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for 
inspection, review and copy in the offices of the LGC by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to 
these reports shall be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements, excluding the 
Auditors’ opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings by municipal bond 
rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and for other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit(s) without requiring consent of the Auditor. If the LGC 
Staff determines that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) financial statements 
and/or the compliance section, those corrections shall be provided within three business days of notification 
unless another deadline is agreed to by LGC Staff.

15. Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than 
necessary under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for 
such additional investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the 
Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be modified or amended to include the increased time, compensation, 
or both as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor.
16. If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in 
writing and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to 
hospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change, 
signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for 
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the 
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

17. A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the 
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit 
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict 
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take 
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting 
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item 30 of this contract. Engagement letters containing 
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

18. Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

19. A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a 
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and 
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued 
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the primary 
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and 
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

20. The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and 
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to 
the Secretary of the LGC.

21. The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify 
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the 
contract is approved.

22. Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of 
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well 
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to

89



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022 

All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 

28. Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2021 and later.  The auditor shall present the
audited financial statements including any compliance reports to the government unit’s governing body or
audit committee in an official meeting in open session as soon as the audited financial statements are
available but not later than 45 days after the submission of the audit report to the Secretary. The auditor’s
presentation to the government unit’s governing body or audit committee shall include:

a) the description of each finding, including all material weaknesses and significant deficiencies, as
found by the auditor, and any other issues related to the internal controls or fiscal health of the
government unit as disclosed in the management letter, the Single Audit or Yellow Book reports, or
any other communications from the auditor regarding internal controls as required by current auditing
standards set by the Accounting Standards Board or its successor;
b) the status of the prior year audit findings;
c) the values of Financial Performance Indicators based on information presented in the  audited
financial statements; and
d) notification to the governing body that the governing body shall develop a “Response to the
Auditor’s Findings, Recommendations, and Fiscal Matters,” if required under 20 NCAC 03 .0508.

29. Information based on the audited financial statements shall be submitted to the Secretary for the purpose
of identifying Financial Performance Indicators and Financial Performance Indicators of Concern. See 20
NCAC 03 .0502(c)(6).

23. This contract may be terminated at any time by mutual consent and agreement of the Governmental
Unit(s) and the Auditor, provided that (a) the consent to terminate is in writing and signed by both parties,
(b) the parties have agreed on the fee amount which shall be paid to the Auditor (if applicable), and (c) no
termination shall be effective until approved in writing by the Secretary of the LGC.

24. The Governmental Unit’s (Units’) failure or forbearance to enforce, or waiver of, any right or an event 
of breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, breach or 
default on any subsequent occasion or instance.

25. There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto 
that shall be enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved 
by the Secretary of the LGC.
26. E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor 
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of 
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

27. Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2020 and later. For all non-attest services, 
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and 
Government Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (as applicable). Financial statement preparation assistance 
shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the threat 
to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor cannot 
complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the documentation of 
this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit workpapers.

90



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022 

30. All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following
numbered paragraphs shall be deleted (See Item 17 for clarification).

31. The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at https://www.nctreasurer.com/state-and-local-
government-finance-division/local-government-commission/submitting-your-audit

32. All communications regarding audit contract requests for modification or official approvals will be sent
to the email addresses provided on the signature pages that follow.

33. Modifications to the language and terms contained in this contract form (LGC-205) are not allowed.

Page 6 
91



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. 11/2022

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional 
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 27 of 
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts 
presented to the LGC without this information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title and Unit / Company:    Email Address: 

2. Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in the
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See
Items 8 and 13 for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

3. The audit fee information included in the table below for both the Primary Government Fees and the DPCU
Fees (if applicable) should be reported as a specific dollar amount of audit fees for the year under this contract. If
any language other than an amount is included here, the contract will be returned to the audit form for correction.

4. Prior to the submission of the completed audited financial report and applicable compliance reports subject to
this contract, or to an amendment to this contract (if required) the Auditor may submit interim invoices for
approval for services rendered under this contract to the Secretary of the LGC, not to exceed 75% of the billings
for the unit's last annual audit that was submitted to the Secretary of the LGC.  All invoices for services rendered
in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before
any payment is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This paragraph not applicable to contracts
and invoices associated with audits of hospitals).

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES
Primary Government Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

DPCU FEES (if applicable) 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

Page 7 

 OR Not Applicable  (Identification of SKE Individual on the LGC-205 Contract is not applicable for 
GAAS-only audits or audits with FYEs prior to June 30, 2020.)

92



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022 

Page 8 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM 

Audit Firm* 

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed)* Signature* 

Date* Email Address* 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governmental Unit* 

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract* 
(G.S.159-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)* Signature* 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1).
Not applicable to hospital contracts. 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* (typed or printed) Signature* 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate* Email Address* 

93



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022 

Page 9 

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU 

(complete only if applicable) 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

DPCU* 

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit 

Contract* (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a)) 

DPCU Chairperson (typed or printed)* Signature* 

Date* Email Address* 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

DPCU  – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1).
Not applicable to hospital contracts. 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed)* Signature* 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate* Email Address* 

Remember to print this form, and obtain all 
required signatures prior to submission.

94



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Director, Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town 
Manager, and Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Electric Rate Update 

Action Requested: Accept Update and Recommendation of Staff. 

Attachment: N/A. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 3/7/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/7/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff will be giving an update on the situation involving electric rates and circumstances surrounding such. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Will be made by Staff at Meeting. 

 

95



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager and Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Discussion Related to Town Council Rules of Procedure 

Action Requested: Council Direction. 

Attachment: Official Copy of Rules of Procedure. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 2/8/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/8/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

This Agenda item involves the on-going discussion related to the process for filling a vacant Council seat and 
the overall Council’s Rules of Procedure which were adopted in August of 2008. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: N/A. 

 

96



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  2023 Municipal Election. 

Action Requested: Approval of One-Stop Voting and Filing Fees. 

Attachment: 2023 Board of Election Information and Municipal Election Guide. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/6/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following: 

➢ One-Stop Voting at Community Building (October 30 – November 4: 8:00 am – 6:00 pm); and 

➢ Filing Fees: (Last Fee $12.00 / >$5.00 and < 1% of pay). 

Budgetary Impact: See Election Guide. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council discuss and approve One-Stop Voting and Filing Fees. 

 

97



 

  

 David P. Davis, Director 
Board Members 
Etsil S. Mason, Chair Debbie Avery, Secretary 
Jeffrey Blick Derek Brown Patricia C. Dunn 

 

    

 

    
www.pittcountync.gov    
1717 West 5th Street  PO Drawer 56 Greenville, N.C. 27835-0036 252.902.3300 fax: 252.830.1157 

    

 

 
 
Town of Winterville 
Don Harvey, Town Clerk 
PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 
February, 21, 2023 
 
 
Dear Town Clerk: 
 
We have calculated the Town of Winterville’s estimated costs for the 2023 Municipal Election to be 
$12,965.83. This estimate is based on the maximum utilization of all possible resources. If the Town 
of Winterville wishes to host an additional One-Stop site, the estimated cost of said site is 
$11,529.37; bringing the total estimate to $24,495.20. 
 
Additional sites must be approved by the Pitt County Board of Elections, who will determine the 
locations and hours of operation. If the Town of Winterville wishes to host any additional One-Stop 
sites, please let me know and I will present it to the Board for their consideration. 
 
Paragraph six of the current Municipal Agreement states that the expenses related to two One-Stop 
sites (Ag. Center and Community Schools) will be shared proportionally among the participating 
municipalities. 

SIXTH: For all municipal elections two One-Stop sites will be in operation. The first site shall be 
located at the Pitt County Agricultural Center at 403 Government Cir.; the second site shall be 
located at the Community Schools Building at 4561 County Home Rd. Each municipality shall be 
responsible for its proportional share of the expenses, based on the percentage of municipal 
registered voters, related to these two sites. 
A municipality may request the Board of Elections provide an additional One-Stop site located 
within their jurisdiction. If approved by the Board of Elections, said municipality shall be 
responsible for all expenses related to the operation of the additional One-Stop site. 

Changes in election law and State Board of Elections directives have altered how we can fulfill the 
agreement. NC State Board of Elections Numbered Memo 2020-13 stipulates the location of a One-
Stop “in lieu of” site as within the same city/town as the elections office, and within 4 miles from the 
elections office or a 10-minute drive. As our office is too small to serve as a One-Stop site, we must 
utilize an “in lieu of” site. To comply with memo 2020-13 this site will be the PATS Conference Room 
on the Pitt County Office Complex or the Eppes Recreation Center. 
 

98



 

  

 David P. Davis, Director 
Board Members 
Etsil S. Mason, Chair Debbie Avery, Secretary 
Jeffrey Blick Derek Brown Patricia C. Dunn 

 

    

 

    
www.pittcountync.gov    
1717 West 5th Street  PO Drawer 56 Greenville, N.C. 27835-0036 252.902.3300 fax: 252.830.1157 

    

 

In NC General Statute 163-227.6(e) sites in addition to the “in lieu of” site may be opened at a later 
date; however, all additional sites must be open on the same days and hours. In an effort to reduce 
expenses for the municipalities additional sites will open the last week of One-Stop (October 30 – 
November 4). To fulfill the municipal agreement the site located at The Center at Alice Keene Park 
(Community Schools) will be opened as the second site. Any other additional sites will open for this 
same period. Municipalities must notify the Director of the Pitt County Board of Elections by June 1, 
2023 the number of additional sites they desire to host. Then, at a date prior to the election, the 
Board of Elections will select the site locations to be utilized. NC General Statute grants the authority 
to select One-Stop site locations only to the County or State Board of Elections. 
 
Important dates for the election are: 
• Candidate filing: July 7 to 21 
• Absentee mail-out begins: October 6 
• One-Stop early voting: October 19 to November 4 
• Election Day: November 7 
• Canvass: November 17 
 
Please review the enclosed 2023 Municipal Election Guide to verify that the municipality’s 
information is correct. If there are any errors, please provide us with the correct information. Also, 
indicate the filing fees that are to be charged to candidates for the 2023 election. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
David P. Davis 
 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  2023 NCLM Board of Directors - Nominating and Elections Process. 

Action Requested: Select Town Voting Delegate. 

Attachment: 2023 NCLM Board of Directors - Nominating and Elections Process Guide, Preliminary 
Agenda. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/6/2023 ☒ TM: 3/8/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/8/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Selection of voting delegate for the Town. 

On or Before April 14, 2023. Voting Delegates will receive instructions. 

The appointed voting delegate from each member municipality shall vote on the slate of candidates via 

electronic means. April 14 – April 19, 2023. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council select a delegate(s) for NCLM Board of Directors election. 

 

114



  

 

      

To: NCLM Membership 
From: Mayor Jerry Jones, Morehead City, Chair of NCLM Nominating Committee 
Date: March 2, 2023 
Subject: 2023 Board of Directors - Nominating and Elections Process 
 
CONTINUED ELECTRONIC NOMINATION & ELECTION PROCESS 
The last three years the League has held successful electronic nominations and elections processes that 
have resulted in increased participation. On December 9, 2021, the Board of Directors authorized the 
continued use of electronic procedures for the Nominating Committee and the voting process to select 
the incoming League Board of Directors. Over the next few months, candidates who are interested in 
serving on next year’s Board will submit their applications on the League’s website, 
https://election.nclm.org. 
 
The Nominating Committee will meet a few times to consider candidates and will conduct candidate 
interviews in advance of the conference. 
 
We anticipate a transparent and effective process that will give all interested parties an opportunity to 
participate in selecting the 2023-24 Board. The Nominating Committee members are shown below along 
with a timeline of events and an overview of the procedures for conducting this year’s election. 
 
NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
League President Scott Neisler has appointed the Nominating Committee as follows: 

• Gerald "Jerry" Jones**, Mayor, Morehead City, Chair | mayorjones@moreheadcitync.org 

• James “Ricky” Credle, Mayor, Belhaven | mayorrickycredle@gmail.com 

• Darrell Hinnant, Mayor, Kannapolis | dhinnant@kannapolisnc.gov 

• Vivian Jones, Mayor, Wake Forest | mayor@wakeforestnc.gov 

• Jeff MacIntosh, Council Member, Winston-Salem | jeffm@cityofws.org 

• William Pitt**, Council Member, Washington | photobro22@yahoo.com 

• Jennifer Robinson,**, Council Member, Cary | jennifer.robinson@townofcary.org 

• Glenn York, Mayor, Zebulon | gyork@townofzebulon.org 
 
**NCLM Past Presidents 
 
2023 ELECTRONIC VOTING PROCESS AND TIMELINE 
 
On or Before March 2, 2023. Nominating Committee Announced. 
The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the League President prior to the Annual Conference, 
and the Nominating Committee shall meet as necessary to develop a slate of candidates for League 
Board of Director offices. The Nominating Committee shall be led by a Chairperson who shall have the 
right to vote on Nominating Committee matters. 
 
March 2 – March 31, 2023. Candidate Interest Submittals. 
Candidates must submit their Candidate Interest Forms from March 2 – March 31, 2023. Candidate 
Interest Forms shall be sent to the League via electronic means established by the Executive Director. 
 

115

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAEAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522https-25253A-25252F-25252Felection.nclm.org-25252F-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DY9bHIg9IIZJSr9-252F4gbwnWGAvdOqvakiezKlqP0y1MMQ-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=Mlydk92xm9buioPBvWNhde19j0s3zUc79EAloZEsNPs&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAIAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Amayorjones-252540moreheadcitync.org-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DisYRxJY4GCYk60v3XXr3q-252FJksvjsgHYE0qyboC-252BIwVY-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=tUxgoCpS8H3_dJdlPhJai8jXmm-V0krxuE9FPqNSIIM&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAMAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Amayorrickycredle-252540gmail.com-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3D8R4Jeqfa29G1GYqIzgzIsipvaG22uT29rHffbnKWdQ8-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=DoSsx9eO5_rANbEzTHdul_47CLQqiEOFZAwrzFyFnQs&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAQAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Adhinnant-252540kannapolisnc.gov-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DUY3xbIPd3oMNqhg2UBOniyOdE9bzxR6QZoEB70w2IEg-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=sw2EnkN94e0LHsP6OqQ_RjDqHSgNL_l-KN6Arp3hSK8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAUAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Amayor-252540wakeforestnc.gov-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3D4fuMEPRauO3tpSRbmKJ-252BEIdqq9JIvL-252F1xK7f9r9RjgU-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=Z8bF5Ybep5k9o76_a91vkK4SC_epRN9vqslmcbsRfsQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAYAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Ajeffm-252540cityofws.org-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DccV-252FABHW2Nnt1RVvn4KdPduOB2tBSvwP6M6VCgzljRo-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=Dqc79p2JroUFDPtj4D0FNZCcm9xk5SiCjuySeAfBFzQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAcAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Aphotobro22-252540yahoo.com-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DQWJXZy-252FBTM0QKTzzARKZdgr5nAZLNujFTatayzkoKLQ-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=-x8LY_Lo1L5pLbSiy7n1ETKVCYd4Th0zNcVnNYF_d8A&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAgAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Ajennifer.robinson-252540townofcary.org-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DBfEy6LpkuNLCVwH-252FzYAA7KVIkWVeDVnN-252FY9vACBJIIM-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=o3u9BiveP12V9OXpY0SDnP4vaGwq8-qcXVrHHAAsRmg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAkAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522mailto-25253Agyork-252540townofzebulon.org-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DZQA7i6eCOOTHlApKeNvgIFwnVtU9IERHMYXLHAc6qdc-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=fbAbcfVBwsPT0_6J0FGG_eU1aIpIFBPAdISURaT2dPY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAAAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522https-25253A-25252F-25252Fwww.nclm.org-25252F-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DCyZy-252FGgbZUzUo7aqYRXRGgUFlSiPYZa348B2Lhx014E-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=eXddq7u7M0Jqc4cxlYRj6jLPf5Lv1Zdp1nCu7NOYfP0&e=


 
March 31, 2023. Deadline. 
Candidate Interest Forms must be received by 5 p.m. on Friday, March 31, 2023. The names of all 
candidates will be publicized on an electronic platform managed by the League. 
 
On or Before April 14, 2023. Voting Delegates Receive Instructions. 
Voting delegates will receive their credentials and voting instructions allowing them to cast electronic 
votes. 
 
April 14, 2023. Final Candidate Slate Presented. 
The Nominating Committee will present the final slate of candidates by 5 p.m. April 14, 2023. The final 
slate shall be presented to the membership via electronic means established by the Executive Director. 
 
April 14 – April 19, 2023. Voting Period. 
The appointed voting delegate from each member municipality shall vote on the slate of candidates via 
electronic means. This voting will take place before the Business Meeting of the Annual Conference. The 
Executive Director shall verify the election results and shall have the results prepared for release at the 
Business Meeting of the Annual Conference. 
 
In the unlikely event the slate is voted down, the Nominating Committee will reconvene and will submit a 
new slate or re-submit the same slate. This second slate will be voted on by the Executive Committee, 
provided the Executive Director shall not vote on this slate. 
 
April 25-27, 2023. Annual Conference and Business Meeting. 
The membership shall have an Annual Conference which shall include a Business Meeting. The election 
results shall be presented at the Business Meeting. 
 
Publicity. The League shall publicize this electronic nomination and voting process to ensure the 
membership is fully informed. 
 
Executive Director’s Discretion. The Executive Committee has given full discretion to the Executive 
Director to carry out this nomination and voting process. Any disputes, discrepancies, date changes, or 
any unforeseen issues that may arise shall be addressed by the Executive Director who shall have full 
decision-making authority over such matters. The Executive Director shall keep the Executive Committee 
informed. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POSITIONS 
At the Business Meeting delegates will elect the 2023-2024 Officers and Board of Directors. Officers and 
Board seats that are open for election in 2023 are as follows: 
• President 
• First Vice-President 
• Second Vice President 
• 6 district board seats (one from each of the even-numbered districts) 
• 1 director at-large seats 
• 3 population-based seats (one from Fayetteville, Raleigh and Winston-Salem) 
• 2 city manager affiliate seats (Affiliate submits nominees) 
• 1 undesignated affiliate organization seat (Affiliates submit nominees) 
 
The attached election map shows the 12 League districts, lists the current officers and lists the members 
of the Board and the status of their terms. Please note that some board members are in the middle of a 
two-year term as indicated and will continue to serve until 2024. The officers serve one-year terms. 
Except as explained below, all directors serve two-year terms, with the possibility of being re-elected for 
a second term (maximum of two consecutive terms). The directors appointed by the President serve 

116

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAoAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522https-25253A-25252F-25252Fwww.nclm.org-25252FShared-252520Documents-25252F20230201-5FBODDistrictMap-2Dd1.pdf-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3Dq45cKCYHAIVjaMOUn1H-252BDOW6PCSxOlU-252FKqFvLU-252Fu-252FJ0-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=nDjuLmy8YTZ2oC5GZysiHiNV_4a9LixmV3ocymPyMYI&e=


one-year terms expiring with the term of the appointing President. Undesignated affiliate seats may not 
be filled by a representative of the same affiliate organization in consecutive terms. 
 
CANDIDATES 
Please encourage qualified candidates to run for the Board. To remain successful, the League needs 
strong, effective leadership and active participation. If you are interested in serving as an officer or 
director, please submit a Candidate Interest Form before 5 p.m. on Friday, March 31, 2023. 
 
NOMINATING PROCEDURE 
The Nominating Committee will review each candidate’s interest form, including submitted responses to 
questions, a video statement, any letters of support or other provided information. Further, the 
Nominating Committee typically considers many other relevant factors in an effort to nominate a 
balanced slate and maintain an effective Board that is representative of the League membership. 
 
Among the factors are municipal population, geography, minority and gender representation, past 
representation of particular municipalities, and other factors as appropriate to represent the diversity and 
interests of the membership. 
 
In considering potential nomination of incumbent or past Board members for a second term or service as 
an officer, the committee also considers their record of attendance. Note that the League Constitution 
provides that, excluding the officers and those directors representing affiliate organizations, not more 
than one member of the Board of Directors shall be elected or appointed from the same municipality. 
Additionally, it specifies that in no event shall more than two members of the Board be elected or 
appointed from the same municipality. 
 
Candidate profiles will be published online at election.nclm.org for the entire membership, including the 
Nominating Committee, to review. Notice of the web location and any updates made to the site will be 
shared with the membership electronically, via social media, and when possible via direct mail. 
 
VOTING PROCEDURES 
The League Constitution provides that each member municipality is entitled to one vote. Designation of 
your city or town’s voting delegate must be completed prior to April 14, 2023. Voting delegates will 
receive their credentials and voting instructions allowing them to cast electronic votes. 

  

 

117

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAsAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522https-25253A-25252F-25252Fwww.cognitoforms.com-25252FNCLM1-25252F-5F2023NCLMCandidateInterestForm-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DV4Zcjc2On7VOWUKWvLHYWqMa8rXVnjBMLCbDuALl82o-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=TmJFbm1bgxtWKgKcLiNX9QxV71tlrgsJAnogx0vIXvo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__public-2Dusa.mkt.dynamics.com_api_orgs_0a07daaf-2D0042-2D4def-2D866d-2D2caaf9e17706_r_Eq0DkB0qYUCFNAod2Ea-5FAAwAAAA-3Ftarget-3D-257B-2522TargetUrl-2522-253A-2522https-25253A-25252F-25252Felection.nclm.org-25252F-2522-252C-2522RedirectOptions-2522-253A-257B-257D-257D-26digest-3DY9bHIg9IIZJSr9-252F4gbwnWGAvdOqvakiezKlqP0y1MMQ-253D&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=FiW6Y8641qcLoFi2zq72hFC8QHa2C83rRIkYAuuz1rY&m=TOseUgoo5vKEJzboKRSpwr6bNewZUm3vyR9rjsNto_U&s=FlwULDI2ESar6XWwNoHn8UqQVcF74gETGmtRfbUOwBs&e=


2022-2023 NCLM Board of Directors

DISTRICT 

LARGE CITY SEATS 

PRESIDENT APPOINTMENTS

TERM

OFFICERS (“EC” INDICATES EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

AT LARGE/MANAGERS

AT LARGE/MUNICIPAL CLERK

AT LARGE/ELECTED OFFICIALS

AT LARGE/MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY

AT LARGE/AFFILIATE ORGANIZATION,
UNDESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

President:

Updated: 2/01/2023

Mayor Walt Eccard, Shallotte
Mayor Neville Hall, Eden (EC)
Council Member Dwight Lake, Mayodan

  Mayor Elizabeth Morey, Southern Shores
  Council Member Brian Jackson, Jacksonville
  Mayor Terry Mann, Whiteville 
  Mayor Jody McLeod, Clayton (EC) 
  Council Member TJ Walker, Rocky Mount
  Council Member Satish Garimella, Morrisville
  Alderwoman Soña Cooper, Spring Lake
  Mayor Melinda Bales, Huntersville 
  Mayor Michael Horn, Lewisville
  Mayor Teross Young, Troutman
  Council Member Phyllis Harris, Mount Holly
  Vacant

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10.
11.
12.

Charlotte: Council Member Malcolm Graham
Durham: Council Member Leonardo Williams
Fayetteville: Council Member Kathy Jensen
Greensboro: Mayor Pro Tem Yvonne Johnson
Raleigh: Council Member Jonathan Melton
Winston-Salem: Council Member Jeff MacIntosh
 

2022 - 23
2022 - 23
2022 - 23

2022 - 24  
2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2022 - 24 

2022 - 24
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23
2021 - 23

 Scott Neisler, Mayor, Kings Mountain (EC)

Rose Williams, NCLM (EC)

Brenda Blanco, Municipal Clerk, New Bern 

Karen McDonald, City Attorney, Fayetteville 

Mayor Don Hardy, Kinston 
Council Member Owen Thomas, Lumberton
Mayor Pro Tem Martha Sue Hall, Albemarle (EC)

Bob Boyette, City Manager, Marion
Tasha Logan Ford, City Manager, High Point
Andrew Havens, Town Manager, Duck

Chris Beddingfield, NC Assoc. of Police Chiefs,
Biltmore Forest 

2021 - 23 

2022 - 24

2022 - 24

2022 - 24

2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2022 - 24

2021 - 23
2022 - 24
2021 - 23

Serving first term, eligible for re-election to serve a second two-year term
Serving second term, not eligible for re-election to the current seat.
President Appointments serve one year term.

First Vice President:

Karen Alexander, Mayor, Salisbury (EC)
Second Vice President:

William Harris, Commissioner, Fuquay-Varina (EC)
Mark-Anthony Middleton, Mayor Pro Tem, Durham (EC)

Immediate Past President:

TERM

John Ellen, Resort Towns & Convention Cities,
Kure Beach 

+
*
A

+

+

+

+

+

+

*

+

+

+

*

+

*

+
+

+

A

A

A

*

*

+

*

*

+

+

+

*

+

+

118



2023 CITYVISION PRELIMINARY AGENDA

Registration Opens

NC BEMO Business Meeting & Brunch

NC Mayors Association Business Lunch

NCLM Foundation Board Meeting 

NC Women in Municipal Government Meeting & Lunch

Networking Break

Pre-conference Session: Ten Keys to Effective Board Oversight

ASDSAD

Tuesday, April 25

citivision.nclm.org

Embassy Suites
Charlotte/Concord Golf Resort & Spa

9:30AM – 5:30PM

10:00AM – 11:30AM

11:30AM – 1:00PM

12:30PM – 1:30PM

1:00PM – 2:30PM

2:30PM – 3:00PM

3:00PM – 5:00PM

3:00PM – 4:00PM Pre-conference Session: Cyber Liability or Data Breach Insurance 
– Training for Municipal Officials and Staff

Pre-conference Session: Getting the Most of Your NCLM Membership

Exhibit Hall Welcome Reception

NC Young Elected Officials Meeting

4:00PM – 5:00PM

4:00PM – 6:00PM

7:00PM – 9:00PM

PAGE 1/3

119



Wednesday, April 26 

citivision.nclm.org

7:30AM – 5:30PM

7:30AM – 8:45AM

7:30AM – 8:45AM

7:30AM – 9:00AM

7:30AM - 9:00AM

9:00AM – 10:30AM

Registration Open

NCCCMA Association Meeting & Breakfast

NC Military Host Cities Coalition Meeting

NC Clerks Association Educational Meeting & Breakfast

NCLM Exhibit Hall Networking & Continental Breakfast

Opening Ceremonies & Welcome with Keynote Speaker
Keynote Session: From Conflict to Conversation, Matt Lehrman

10:30AM – 11:00AM

1:00AM – 12:00PM

Exhibit Hall Networking Break

Impact of “Heirs’ Property” in Local Governments: What to Know
and What You Can Do
The Power of Regional Partnerships
Incorporating Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion into Your Municipal
Planning Decisions
Attracting and Retaining Employees 

Concurrent Sessions

12:00PM – 1:30PM

1:45PM – 3:00PM

NCLM Networking Luncheon 

Leveraging State and Federal Resources to Address Infrastructure
in Your Community
How the Corporate Buyout of Housing is Affecting Municipalities
and How Cities Can Respond
Small Town Strategic Planning and Infrastructure
Municipal Employment Laws: What Your Town Needs to Know

Concurrent Sessions

3:00PM - 3:30PM

3:30PM – 5:30PM

NCLM Networking Ice Cream Social 

Rick Hendrick Heritage Museum Tour – 32 person max.
Concord/Kannapolis Downtown Tour – 100 person max.
Concord Traffic Management Center & Electric Operations Bldg.,
Fire Station 12 – 50 person max.
Concord’s ClearWater Arts Center & Studio – 50 person max.

Mobile Tours, Relax and Visit Concord (Pre-registration required)

5:30PM – 6:00PM

6:00PM – 9:00PM

Transportation available to Host City Event

Host City Event Begins
Cabarrus Brewery Kettle Room 

ASDSADPAGE 2/3

120



Thursday, April 27 

citivision.nclm.org

7:30AM – 8:30AM

8:30AM – 9:00AM

NCLM Exhibit Hall Networking, Continental Breakfast 

Federal Grants Available to North Carolina Local Governments:
What Resources are Available Now and on the Horizon
Strategies for Focusing on Underutilized Properties in Your
Downtown
Social Districts & Downtown Planning – How to Have Walkable
Areas and Plan for Liability and Enforcement Issues
Best Practices in Law Enforcement, Recruiting, and Organizational
Leadership: What Happens When We Get It Wrong?

Concurrent Sessions

Concord Motor Speedway Tour – 50 person max.
Concord/Kannapolis Downtown Tours – 100 person max.
Concord’s Traffic Management Center, Electric Operations Bldg.,
Fire Station 12 – 50 person max.
Concord’s ClearWater Arts Center & Studios – 50 person max.

Mobile Tours, Relax, and Visit Concord (Pre-registration required)

5:15PM - 6:15PM

6:15PM – 8:15PM

8:15PM

NCLM President’s Reception

NCLM President’s Dinner & Awards Ceremony

NCLM Social Gathering 

9:30AM – 10:00AM

10:00AM – 11:00AM

11:00AM – 12:00PM

12:00PM – 1:45PM

1:45PM – 2:45PM

3:00PM - 5:00PM

Exhibit Hall Networking Break

General Session “Hot Topic” Roundtable Discussions

Exhibit Hall Networking & Door Prizes

NCLM Luncheon and Business Meeting

NCLM Networking Dessert Social

Friday, April 28 

8:00AM – 1:00PM NCLM Golf Tournament – Rocky River Golf Club at Concord
(Lunch Included)

ASDSADPAGE 3/3

121


	00_20230313_Agenda_Final
	07_01a_Womens_History_Month_Proclamation_2023
	08_01a_Abstract_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PHv2
	08_01b_Application_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_01c_Map_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	Sheets and Views
	Rezoning Map


	08_01d_Legal_Description_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_01e_Notification_of_Rezoning_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_01f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_01g_Notice_of_Public_Hearing_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_01h_Staff_Report_Waterford_Crossing_Rezoning_PH
	08_02a_Abstract_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PHv2
	08_02b_Application_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02c_Map_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02d_Legal_Description_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02e_Notification_of_Rezoning_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02g_Notice_of_Public_Hearing_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	08_02h_Staff_Report_Gray_Point_Motors_Rezoning_PH
	09_01_Rebecca_Caveness_Watermelon_Festival
	10_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	10_01b_20230123_Vision_Setting_Minutes_DRAFT
	10_01c_20230213_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	10_02a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Calendar_Amendmentv2
	10_02b_2023-2024_Budget_Calendar_r1
	10_03a_Consent_Abstract_DPD_Properties_Annex_Cert_Suffv2
	10_03b_Petition_with_Legal_ Description_DPD_Properties_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_03c_Map_DPD_Properties_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_03d_Resolution_23-R-031_DPD_Properties_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_03e_Draft_Cert_Suff_DPD_Properties_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_04a_Consent_Abstract_Open_Door_Annex_Cert_Suffv2
	10_04b_Petition_with_Legal_Description_Open_Door_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_04c_Map_Open_Door_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_04d_Resolution_23-R-032_Open_Door_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_04e_Draft_Cert_Suff_Open_Door_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_05a_Consent_Abstract_Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suffv2
	10_05b_Petition_Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_05c_Legal_Description_Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_05d_Map_Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suff
	Sheets and Views
	Model
	_PS3ALL



	10_05e_Resolution_23-R-033_Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_05f_Draft_Cert_Suff__Aces_Autism_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_06a_Consent_Abstract__Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suffv2
	10_06b_Petition_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_06c_Legal_Description_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_06d_Map_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_06e_Resolution_23-R-034_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_06f_Draft_Cert_Suff__Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_1_Annex_Cert_Suff
	10_07a_Consent_Abstract_Audit_Contract_FY_22-23v2
	10_07b_Audit Contract 2023 Winterville
	LGC205 Audit Contract 2021 Contract Body
	FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES
	FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES
	PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES
	PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES

	LGC205 Audit Contract 2021 Signature Page - STANDARD and HOSPITAL

	11_01a_Old_Abstract_Electric_Rate_Updatev2
	11_02a_Old_Abstract_Rules_of_Procedurev2
	12_01a_New_Abstract_2023_Municipal_Electionv2
	12_01b_2023_Board_of_Election_Information_and_Guide
	b_Estimate_Letter_Winterville_2023
	c_2023_Municipal_Election_Guide
	d_Election_Memo
	e_163-227.6_Election_General_Statues

	12_02a_New_Abstract_NCLM_Board_Electionv2
	12_02b_2023_Board_Directors_Nominating_and_Elections_Process
	12_02b_2023_Board_Directors_Nominating_and_Elections_Process
	NCLM_Board_of_Directors_Map

	12_02c_NCLM_CityVision_Preliminary_Agenda

	Governing Board: Town Council
	Auditor Address: PO Box 10588, Goldsboro, NC 27532-0588
	Fiscal Year Ending: 06/30/23
	Audit Report Due Date: 10/31/23
	Auditor: On
	Governmental Unit: Off
	Third Party: Off
	SKE Name: Anthony B. Bowers
	SKE Title: Assistant Town Manager
	SKE Email Address: anthony.bowers@wintervillenc.com
	GAAS Audit: Off
	Primary Government Unit: Town of Winterville, North Carolina 
	Audit Fee: 37,500
	Fee Per Major Program: 
	Writing Financial Statements: 7,500
	Other Non-Attest Services: 700
	DPCU: NA
	DPCU Audit Fee: 
	DPCU Fee Per Major Program: 
	DPCU Writing Financial Statements: 
	DPCU Other Non-Attest Services: 
	Auditor Name: Carr, Riggs & Ingram, P.L.L.C.
	Audit Firm Represenative: Michael C. Jordan
	Audit Firm Date: 01/04/23
	Audit Firm Email Address: mjordan@cricpa.com
	Primary Government Unit Approval Date: 
	Mayor/Chairperson: Richard E. Hines, Mayor
	Government Unit Date: 
	Government Unit Email: ricky.hines@wintervillenc.com
	Chair Audit Committee: NA
	Audit Committee Date: 
	Audit Committee Email: 
	Governmental Unit FO: Jessica Manning
	Primary Government Date of PreAudit Certificate: 
	Government Unit FO Email Address: jessica.manning@wintervillenc.com
	DPCU Approval Date: 
	DPCU Chair: 
	DPCU Chair Date: 
	DPCU Chair Email: 
	DPCU Chair Audit Committee: 
	DPCU Aucit Committee Date: 
	DPCU Audit Committee Email: 
	DPCU FO: 
	DPCU Date of PreAudit Certificate: 
	DPCU FO Email Address: 
	Print: 


